

The CARE Federation







Domestic Abuse Policy

This policy incorporates the model policy determined by the Norfolk County

Community Safety Partnership

Agreed by Governing Body: Spring 2025

To be reviewed: Spring 2028

Group Responsible: SLT

Contents:

Statement of intent

- 1. Legal framework
- 2. Roles and responsibilities
- 3. <u>Definitions</u>
- 4. Identifying victims of domestic abuse
- 5. Supporting victims of domestic abuse
- 6. Getting help and support
- 7. Confidentiality and record keeping
- 8. Perpetrators of domestic abuse
- 9. Training
- 10. Professional role and risk management
- 11. Monitoring and review

Statement of intent

The CARE Federation wants to ensure that all staff members are able to recognise the signs of domestic abuse and know how they can get support.

This policy outlines the Federation's stance on domestic abuse and how any staff member who discloses being a victim of domestic abuse will be supported by our schools. The aim of this policy is to raise awareness of domestic abuse among staff members and how they can recognise indicators that a colleague may be a victim of domestic abuse.

The policy also outlines what measures will be put in place should a staff member be an alleged perpetrator of domestic abuse.

Our Federation has signed the Help Educate Awareness Respond (HEAR) Pledge to help employees who might be suffering domestic abuse. The HEAR campaign calls on employers to break the silence around domestic abuse and HEAR, help and provide support to staff on this important issue. HEAR campaign - Norfolk County Council

We are committed to developing a workplace culture in which there is zero tolerance for abuse and which recognises that the responsibility for domestic abuse lies with the perpetrator. The CARE Federation has a 'zero tolerance' position on domestic abuse and is committed to ensuring that any employee who is the victim of domestic abuse has the right to raise the issue with their employer in the knowledge that they will receive appropriate support and assistance. This policy also covers the approach we will take where there are concerns that an employee may be the perpetrator of domestic abuse.

By developing an effective domestic abuse policy and working to reduce the risks related to domestic abuse, we will create a safer workplace and we will also send out a strong message that domestic abuse is unacceptable.

The CARE Federation recognises that domestic abuse is an equalities issue and undertakes to not discriminate against anyone who has been subjected to domestic abuse in terms of current employment or future development.

This policy is part of The CARE Federations commitment to family friendly working, and seeks to benefit the welfare of individual members of staff; retain valued employees; improve morale and performance; and enhance the reputation of The CARE Federation as an employer of choice.

Under the Health and Safety at Work Act (1974) and the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations (1992), The CARE Federation recognises its legal responsibilities in promoting the welfare and safety of all staff. Therefore, this policy applies to staff across all sites as well as agency and contract staff (and elected members).

1. Legal framework

The CARE Federation understands its legal responsibility to promote the welfare of all staff members.

This policy has due regard to all relevant legislation and statutory guidance including, but not limited to, the following:

- Domestic Abuse Act 2021
- Domestic Abuse statutory guidance
- Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974
- The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1992
- Family Law Act 1996
- The Health and Safety (Consultation with Employees) Regulations 1996
- The UK General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)
- Data Protection Act 2018
- Equality Act 2010

This policy operates in conjunction with the following school policies:

- Staff Wellbeing Policy
- Staff Confidentiality Policy
- Staff Attendance and Absence Policy
- Staff Code of Conduct

2. Roles and responsibilities

The Executive headteacher will:

- Review this policy on a 3 yearly cycle or earlier if required.
- Oversee the school's management of staff wellbeing.
- Act as the point of call for staff members who are experiencing domestic violence and abuse.
- Encourage that all staff members report any concerns they have for their colleagues.
- Ensure that awareness is enhanced for all staff members through the organisation of training and events.
- Lead disciplinary measures where a staff member is found guilty of perpetrating domestic abuse.
- Support alleged perpetrators of domestic abuse while a case is being investigated.

The SLT will:

- Assist the headteacher in the school's management of staff wellbeing.
- Ensure all staff members are aware of this policy and communicate it through staff meetings, inductions and communications.
- Encourage all staff to read this policy and follow the measures to take when addressing domestic violence and abuse.
- Further educate themselves on the issue of domestic abuse in order to answer any questions staff members have.

 Support disciplinary measures where a staff member is found guilty of perpetrating domestic abuse.

All staff members will:

- Read this policy and ask any questions they have regarding its content.
- Report any concerns for their colleagues regarding domestic violence and abuse.
- Understand the impact that domestic abuse has on its victims.
- Participate in training and events held by the school.
- Support and uphold the school's stance on domestic abuse.

The DSL will:

- Work in collaboration with the headteacher if a case of domestic abuse among staff members becomes a safeguarding issue.
- Ensure pupils are protected in the event that a staff member is alleged to be a perpetrator of domestic abuse.

3. Definitions

'Domestic abuse' is defined by the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 as abusive behaviour where the perpetrator and the victim are both over the age of 16 and are personally connected to each other. Domestic abuse can be a single incident or a course of conduct.

For the purposes of this policy, **the 'perpetrator'** is the individual who has carried, or carries out, the act of abusive behaviour.

'The victim' is the person who has had, or is having, the act of abusive behaviour relayed upon them.

Individuals are classed as being 'personally connected' if they are, or have been:

- Married to each other.
- Civil partners of each other.
- In agreement to become married to one another.
- In agreement to enter into a civil partnership.
- In an intimate personal relationship with each other.
- In a parental relationship in relation to the same child.
- Relatives under the definition given under section 63(1) of the Family Law Act 1996.

'Abusive behaviour' is classified as any action which consist of any of the following:

- Physical or sexual abuse.
- Violent or threatening behaviour.
- Controlling or coercive behaviour.
- Economic abuse.
- Psychological, emotional or other abuse.

'Physical abuse, violent or threatening behaviour' is when the perpetrator hurts, or threatens to hurt, the victim using physical force – this may include:

- Being, or threatened to be, kicked, punched, pinched, pushed, dragged, shoved, slapped, scratched, strangled, spat on and bitten.
- Use, or threats of use, of weapons including knives and irons.
- Being, or being threatened to be, burned, scalded, poisoned, or drowned.
- Objects being thrown at or in the direction of the victim.
- Violence, or threats of violence, against family members.
- Causing harm by damaging or denying access to medical aids or equipment.
- Harming someone whilst performing 'caring' duties, e.g. force feedings, overmedication, withdrawing medication, or denying access to medical care.

'Sexual abuse' is when the perpetrator makes the victim feel uncomfortable through sexual demands or advances – this can be verbal, physical, or both and may include:

- Rape and sexual assaults.
- Being pressured into sex, or sexual acts, including with other people.
- Being forced to take part in sexual acts because of threats to others.
- Unwanted sexual contact or demands.
- 'Corrective' rape, meaning the practice of raping someone with the aim of 'curing' them
 of being LGBTQ+.
- Intentional exposure to sexually transmitted infections.
- Being pressured or tricked into having unsafe sex.
- Forced involvement in making or watching pornography.
- Hurting a victim during sex including non-fatal strangulation.

'Controlling or coercive behaviour' is manipulative, forceful or duplicitous behaviour which takes place in an attempt to influence the victim's day-to-day behaviour or activities, and constitutes domestic abuse when it causes the victim to fear that violence will be used or places a substantial adverse effect on the victim's usual day-to-day activities. This behaviour takes place repeatedly or continuously and may include:

- Controlling or monitoring the victim's daily activities and behaviour.
- Controlling a victim's access to finances, including monitoring their accounts or coercing them into sharing their passwords to bank accounts.
- Isolating the victim from family, friends and professionals who may be trying to support them.
- Refusing to interpret or hindering access to communication.
- Preventing the victim from taking medical support or medication.
- Using substances to control a victim through dependency, or controlling their access to substances.
- Using children to control the victim, e.g. threatening to take the children away.
- Using animals to control or coerce a victim, e.g. harming or threatening to harm, or give away, pets or assistance dogs.
- Threats to expose sensitive information.
- Intimidation and threats of disclosure of sexual orientation or gender identity to family, friends, work colleagues and wider community.
- Preventing the victim from learning a language or making friends outside of their ethnic or cultural background.

- Threatening precarious immigration status with the victim, e.g. using immigration law to threaten the victim with potential deportation.
- Using the victim's health status to induce fear and restrict their freedom of movement.
- Threats of institutionalisation.
- Physical violence, violent or threatening behaviour, sexual abuse, emotional or psychological abuse, economic abuse and verbal abuse.

'Harassment or stalking' may constitute physical abuse, threatening behaviour, controlling or coercive behaviour, or emotional or psychological abuse. It is generally referred to as repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and contact upon a victim, in a manner that could be expected to cause distress and fear – this may include:

- Following a person.
- Contacting, or attempting to contact, a person by any means.
- Publishing any statement or other material relating or purporting to relate to a person, or purporting to originate from a person.
- Monitoring the use by a person of the internet, email or any other form of electronic communication.
- Loitering in any place.
- Interfering with any property in the possession of a person.
- Watching or spying on a person.

'Economic abuse' is any behaviour that has a substantial adverse effect on the victim's ability to acquire, use or maintain money or other property, or obtain goods or services – this may include:

- Controlling the family income.
- Not allowing the victim to earn or spend any money unless 'permitted'.
- Denying the victim food or only allowing them to eat a particular type of food.
- Running up bills and debts such as credit or store cards in a victim's name including without them knowing.
- Refusing to contribute to household income or costs.
- Deliberately forcing a victim to go to the family courts so they incur additional legal fees.

'Emotional or psychological abuse' is behaviour which aims to control the victim through tactics of manipulation – this may include:

- Manipulating a person's anxieties or beliefs or abusing a position of trust.
- Hostile behaviours or silent treatment as part of a pattern of behaviour to make the victim feel fearful.
- Being insulted, including in front of others.
- Repeatedly being belittled.
- Keeping the victim awake or preventing them from sleeping.
- Using violence or threats of violence towards pets or assistance dogs to intimate the
 victim and cause distress, e.g. by harming the animal or controlling how the owner is
 able to care for the animal.
- Threatening to harm family, peers and loved ones.

- Using social media sites to intimidate the victim.
- Persuading the victim to doubt their own sanity or mind, including gaslighting.

'Verbal abuse' Verbal abuse may amount to emotional or psychological abuse, threatening behaviour or controlling or coercive behaviour – this may include:

- Repeated yelling and shouting.
- Abusive, insulting, threatening or degrading language.
- Verbal humiliation either in private or in company.
- · Being laughed at and being made fun of.
- Discriminating against someone or mocking them about their disability, sex or gender identity, gender reassignment, religion or faith, sexual orientation, age, physical appearance or for any other reason.

'Technology-facilitated abuse' is where the perpetrator uses technology, including social media, to abuse victims. This can happen during and after the relationship and is commonly perpetrated by ex-partners. This can include:

- Placing false or malicious information about a victim on their or others' social media.
- Setting up false social media accounts in the name of the victim.
- 'Trolling' with abusive, offensive or deliberately provocative messages via social media platforms or online forums.
- Image-based abuse, e.g. the creation of digitally altered images or the non-consensual distribution of, or threats to share, private sexual imagery also known as 'revenge porn'.
- 'Upskirting' taking a picture under another person's clothing without their knowledge.
- Hacking into, monitoring or controlling email accounts, social media profiles and phone calls
- Blocking the victim from using heir online accounts, responding in the victim's place or creating false accounts.
- Use of spyware or GPS locators on items such as phones, computer, wearable technology, cars motorbikes and pets.
- Hacking internet enabled devices to gain access to accounts or trace information such as a person's location.
- Use of hidden cameras.

'Abuse relating to faith' is when abuse occurs in relation to an individual's faith by using, manipulating, or exploiting it – this may include:

- Manipulation and exploitation through the influence of religion.
- Requirements for secrecy and silence.
- Marital rape and the use of religious scripture to justify it.
- Coercion to conform or control through the use of sacred or religious texts or teaching, e.g. theological justifications for sexual coercion or abuse.
- Causing harm, isolation or neglect to get rid of an 'evil force' or 'spirit' that is believed to have possessed the victim.
- Requirement of obedience to the perpetrator of domestic abuse, owing to religion or faith, or their 'divine' position.

- Being forced to act or behave in ways which contradict religious beliefs.
- Preventing the victim from performing acts of worship.
- Forcing sexual acts which contradict religious observance and or religious law.
- Forcing or limiting access to abortion, birth control or sterilisation when this contravenes religious observance.

'Honour-based abuse' is a crime or incident which is committed to protect or defend the perceived honour of the family or community, or in response to individuals trying to break away from constraining 'norms' of behaviour that their family or community is trying to impose. It can be physical, emotional or psychological and may include:

- Placing restrictions on the victim's freedom.
- Threats to kill.
- FGM.
- Forced marriage.

While the above lists offer some common examples of domestic abuse, these lists are by no means exhaustive and there are many other ways in which the perpetrator may practice abusive behaviours. All staff members will make themselves aware of the above definitions and contribute to the whole-school approach to dealing with domestic abuse.

4. Identifying victims of domestic abuse

All staff members will read the above definitions and make themselves aware of the signs of domestic abuse and the impact that it has on the victims.

When a staff member is worried that a colleague is being abused, they will let the potential victim know and seek to find a quiet time and place to talk; however, they should understand that they may not be ready to talk.

Many signs of domestic abuse are hard to see; however, some, e.g. physical indicators, are easier to recognise. All staff members will be aware of the following indicators that a colleague may be a victim of domestic abuse:

- Unexplained and frequent injuries such as burns and bruises
- Injuries to which the potential victim's explanation does not match
- Changes in behaviour
- Sudden development of mental health difficulties such as depression and anxiety
- Difficulties concentrating or listening this could be in general conversation or whilst carrying out their job
- Noticeable increase in substance use
- Sudden drops in performance
- Frequent lateness or absence
- Spending more time at school than usual and/or necessary for some victims, the school may be a place of refuge away from the perpetrator
- Wearing clothes which hide injuries or bruising
- Taking regular time off for appointments
- Taking an excessive number of phone calls from their partner during the school day
- Complaining about their partner frequently and confiding in their colleagues

 Becoming defensive or overly secretive when asked about aspects of their personal life

While staff are encouraged to look out for the above indicators, it is important to remember that this is by no means an exhaustive list. Those in management may be more likely to spot some of these indicators, e.g. performance and attendance-related changes.

When approaching a potential victim of domestic abuse, staff members are expected to use sensitive language and make attempts to ask questions which are not overly intrusive as they may be triggering for the victim.

Staff will participate in any training, guest speakers or awareness events that the school organises in order to enhance their understanding of domestic abuse.

When a staff member identifies a potential victim of domestic abuse, they must respect the victim's confidentiality and information will not be shared with other members of staff without their permission; however, the victim will be encouraged to share this information with the headteacher so that the school can support them to gain access to the help that is available.

5. Supporting victims of domestic abuse

The school has a duty of care for all of its employees and takes the wellbeing of its staff members extremely seriously.

When a staff member discloses that they are a victim of domestic abuse, the headteacher will offer information and support, and point them in the direction of where they can get further help. While the headteacher will not ordinarily deal with the abuse itself, they will make it clear that staff will be assisted to seek help, advice and support.

The school adopts methods to support victims of domestic abuse, including:

- Promoting awareness of the issue across the school.
- Incorporating confidential reporting channels.
- Using a code word or signal to alert others of domestic abuse or an immediate risk.
- Enabling victims to make use of special leave arrangements in order to support their wellbeing.
- Adopting a whole-school approach towards dealing with the complications of domestic abuse.

In addition, the school adopts the Public Health England (now UK Health Security Agency and Office for Health Improvement and Disparities) and Business in the Community's (BITC) 'four R's' approach:

- **Recognise:** recognise the problem to enable managers and employees to understand that domestic abuse is a workplace issue that everyone can play a part in tackling.
- Refer: provide access to internal confidential support and signpost appropriately to external organisations who can help staff members who disclose that they are a victim of domestic abuse.
- **Respond:** implement policies, and processes to enable a supportive school environment which responds appropriately to the disclosure of domestic abuse.

• **Record:** keep an accurate and secure record of what the victim has disclosed in order to provide the police with information should criminal proceedings take place.

In the event that a staff member discloses their experience of domestic abuse, the SLT will consider asking questions to protect the victim whilst they are on school site such as:

- Does the perpetrator know where the victim lives?
- Has the victim ever been followed by the perpetrator on their way to or from work?
- Is the victim concerned of anything specific that might take place at work or to and from work?
- Does the perpetrator have access to the victim's work contact details?
- What information is the victim comfortable sharing with the wider team or relevant staff to ensure that any changes can be implemented and an appropriate response can be delivered?

Where necessary, the school will consider taking action to support an employee who has disclosed that they are a victim of domestic abuse – the school look to take action in relation to the following:

Contact arrangements

- Keeping a record of both a work contact and an emergency contact at home
- Making advance arrangements of when and who to contact if a staff member does not come in to work
- Maintaining communication with the staff member during a period of absence, while keeping their location confidential from the perpetrator and other people named by the victim

Safety to and from work

- Enable the staff member to arrive at the school earlier and leave later if they wish
- Support the staff member with a transfer to another school if they believe this would improve their safety

Safety while at work

- If necessary, change the locks and codes to enter the school
- Consider an alternative entrance to, or exit from, the school
- Consider what security arrangements can be put in place to identify the perpetrator to deny their access to the school

Communication safety

- Review the security of the staff member's records and personal information
- Change the staff member's school contact details
- Issue instructions to all staff they must not disclose the staff member's personal details or whereabouts to anyone

Managing responsibilities at work

- Consider whether the staff member's working arrangements can be amended
- Adjust the staff member's workload by extending deadlines or redelegating responsibilities
- Consider additional support for the staff member
- Permit special leave or time off to attend appointments or court

In accordance with NHS guidance, where a victim confides in their colleague that they are suffering domestic abuse, the staff member being confided in will:

- Listen and ensure that they do not place blame on them.
- Acknowledge the strength it has taken for the victim to talk about their experience of domestic abuse.
- Give them time to talk without pushing them to divulge into additional details.
- Acknowledge the frightening and difficult situation that the victim is faced with.
- Inform them that no one deserves to be abused, and that the perpetrator has no right to make them think otherwise.
- Support them and encourage them to express their feelings whilst allowing them to make their own decisions.
- Not be overly expressive with opinions, e.g. do not tell the victim to leave the relationship this is their decision.
- Ask whether they have suffered any physical harm and offer to go with them to seek
 medical attention if necessary; however, staff will not inquire further if this question
 makes the victim uncomfortable or agitated.
- Help them to report the abuse to the police if the victim chooses to do so.
- Be ready to provide information about organisations that offer help for people experiencing domestic abuse.

6. Getting help and support

The school will ensure that all staff members know that all forms of domestic abuse are not acceptable in any situation – if a staff member is experiencing domestic abuse, the school will reassure the victim that it is not their fault and advise them to seek help and support.

While the school will offer its staff members as much support as possible should they become a victim of domestic abuse, the victim will be made aware of the resources available to them to seek support from charities and professionals in the field of domestic abuse.

Below are some resources which all staff members will be aware of if they are a victim of domestic abuse, or supporting a victim of domestic abuse:

Women can contact the <u>National Domestic Abuse Helpline</u> on 0808 2000 247 for a free, confidential phone call 24 hours a day. There is also a live chat available from Monday to Friday between the hours of 3:00pm and 10:00pm.

<u>The Survivor's Handbook</u> from the charity Women's Aid also provides information for women on a wide range of issues for victims such as housing, money, helping children, and legal rights.

Men can use the Men's Advice Line by calling 0808 8010 327, emailing info@mensadviceline.org.uk or by making use of the webchat service which is available Wednesday, Thursday and Friday 10:00am until 11:00am and 3:00pm until 4:00pm.

Staff members who identify as LGBTQ+ can access the resources on <u>Galop</u> and call their domestic abuse hotline on 0800 999 5428.

In an emergency, staff will call 999 immediately.

Further specialist sources of support for domestic abuse can be found <u>here</u>. And on pages 147-151 of the <u>Domestic Abuse Act 2021</u>.

The CARE Federation will respond sympathetically, confidentially and effectively to any member of staff who discloses that they are experiencing domestic abuse.

Where domestic abuse has been reported line managers will treat unplanned absences and temporary poor timekeeping sympathetically.

Line managers may offer employees experiencing domestic abuse a broad range of support. This may include, but is not limited to:

- Special paid leave for relevant appointments, including with support agencies, solicitors, to rearrange housing or childcare, and for court appointments.
- Temporary or permanent changes to working times and patterns.
- Changes to specific duties, for example to avoid potential contact with an abuser in a customer facing role.
- Redeployment or relocation.
- Measures to ensure a safe working environment, for example changing a telephone number to avoid harassing phone calls.
- Using other existing policies, including flexible working.
- Access to counselling/support services in paid time.
- Access to courses developed to support female survivors of domestic abuse, for example The Freedom Programme or assertiveness training.

Line managers will respect the right of staff to make their own decision on the course of action at every stage.

Other existing provisions (including occupational health, independent counselling service, others) will also be signposted to staff as a means of support.

When an employee discloses domestic abuse, The CARFE Federation will encourage its employees to contact a specialist support agency (or suitably trained specialist member of staff) who can undertake a Domestic Abuse Stalking and Harassment (DASH) risk assessment and make appropriate referrals where necessary.

The CARE Federation will work with the employee and a specialist agency (with the employee's consent) to identify what actions can be taken to increase their personal safety at work and at home as well as address any risks there may be to colleagues.

7. Confidentiality and record keeping

The CARE Federation respects employees' right to privacy. Whilst The CARE Federation strongly encourages victims of domestic abuse to disclose domestic abuse for the safety of

themselves and all those in the workplace, it does not force them to share this information if they do not want to.

Once a staff member has disclosed that they are a victim of domestic abuse to the school management, the headteacher will suggest that they and the victim find somewhere quiet and private to speak about the issues that the victim is comfortable to talk about. The complete confidentiality of the disclosure will be confirmed to the victim and any information disclosed will only be reported to anyone else if it is completely necessary in providing help and support, and with the prior agreement from the victim themselves.

Exceptions to the confidentiality of the disclosed information may be made if the person to whom the information has been communicated believes that there is an imminent threat to life, harm to children, harm to pupils at the school, or a threat against the people who have had the information disclosed to them. Where such a situation occurs, the police will be contacted, and their advice followed.

In the circumstances where complete confidentiality cannot be maintained, the victim will be informed of the reasons as to why this has happened. They will be reassured that only the necessary information has been shared and that care has been taken to ensure that sharing the information is not putting the victim at an increased risk.

A secure record of the information disclosed will be kept by the school for the purpose of relaying accurate information to the police should the abuse be brought to a court of law.

In accordance with UK GDPR and the Data Protection Act 2018, the victim will always have the right to access the personal data held by the school and the rights of other individuals to access this information will remain restricted.

The school will take careful measures to ensure that the release of the victim's personal information does not become accessible to the perpetrator, or anyone associated with the perpetrator through coercion to convince the victim to release the data.

8. Perpetrators of domestic abuse

Staff members who perpetrate domestic abuse will be in serious breach of their professional conduct and may face criminal proceedings. The school takes the issue of domestic abuse extremely seriously and will not tolerate abusive behaviour in any form by any of its staff members.

The CARE Federation views the use of violence and abusive behaviour by an employee, wherever this occurs, as a breach of the organisation's Code of Conduct for disciplinary purposes.

The CARE Federation Code of Conduct is intended to inform all staff, irrespective of grade, of the standards of conduct expected of them. It identifies a set of principles governing behaviour by which staff members are expected to abide. Staff members are expected at all times to present high standards of personal integrity and conduct that will not reflect adversely on the organisation and its reputation.

In some circumstances it may be deemed inappropriate for the individual to continue in his/her current role(s), due to a caution or conviction. The CARE Federation views the use of violence

and abusive behaviour by an employee, wherever this occurs, as a breach of the organisation's Code of Conduct for disciplinary purposes.

These procedures can be applicable in cases where an employee has:

- Behaved in a way that has harmed or threatened his/her partner.
- Possibly committed a criminal offence against his/her partner.
- Had an allegation of domestic abuse made against him/her.
- Presented concerns about their behaviour within an intimate relationship.

Where a staff member is alleged to have committed an act, or acts, of domestic abuse, the school will understand that this will likely be a stressful situation for them and will aim to reduce risk and support change by dealing with each allegation on a case-by-case basis.

The school will support a police investigation if a staff member is alleged to have perpetrated domestic abuse – the school will ensure that:

- All allegations are approached with fairness.
- The alleged perpetrator of the abuse receives support and guidance.
- Confidentiality is maintained during the investigation and information is only communicated to those who have a genuine need to know.
- Investigations are thorough and independent.
- All cases are dealt with in a way which avoids unnecessary delays; however, the school understands that cases take time and some may require additional time due to their complexity.
- The alleged perpetrator is treated fairly and receives help to understand the concerns and processes the allegation entails.
- The alleged perpetrator receives information about the progress of the investigation and the implications of any potential disciplinary proceedings that the school may have to take.

Where the alleged perpetrator is convicted of a domestic abuse offence, the school will consider whether this will have an impact on their ability to perform their role and whether or not the staff member should be removed from their role at the school.

False allegations of domestic abuse against staff members by other staff members will be taken extremely seriously and will result in disciplinary proceedings where the allegation is proven to be malicious and false.

If a staff member is found guilty of **assisting someone to perpetuate domestic abuse**, e.g. by providing the perpetrator with the victim's work contact details, they may be subject to investigation and disciplinary proceedings.

Where the victim and perpetrator are colleagues at the school, the headteacher will work closely with the SLT and the police, where necessary, to carefully look at each case and take the appropriate action. The school will take steps to ensure that the victim and alleged perpetuator do not come in to contact with one another at the school while the case is dealt

with; this may be done via the imposition of a suspension for the alleged perpetrator if the school deems it necessary.

In collaboration with the school's LA and DSL, the headteacher will lead safeguarding protocols when dealing with an allegation or disclosure of domestic abuse, the school will be required to invoke serious misconduct procedures and consider whether the perpetrator needs to be suspended based on the evidence of the case.

Staff members will all make themselves aware of the behaviours which constitute domestic abuse to protect themselves, their colleagues and to recognise where the behaviours which they exhibit may classify as domestic abuse.

Where a staff member has approached the school with concerns that they may have practiced, or are practicing abusive behaviours, they will be directed to the services and support available to them and will be encouraged to seek help from an appropriate source.

If staff a member is worried that they may be showing abusive behaviours, the school will provide contact details for the <u>Respect helpline</u> on 0808 802 4040.

There are five potential strands in the consideration of an allegation:

- 1. A police investigation of a possible criminal offence
- 2. Disciplinary action by the employer
- 3. Providing specialist, safety-focused counselling
- 4. Identifying risk
- 5. Referral to Local Authority regarding risk to general public/vulnerable people

Any employee who is responsible for giving advice, or who comes into contact with or supports those vulnerable people or children experiencing domestic abuse needs to be particularly aware of the potential consequences if they are found to be perpetrators.

If a colleague is found to be assisting an abuser in perpetrating the abuse, for example, by giving them access to facilities such as telephones, email or fax machines then they will be seen as having committed a disciplinary offence.

If it becomes evident that an employee has made a malicious allegation that another employee is perpetrating abuse then this will be treated as a serious disciplinary offence and action will be taken.

9. Training

The CARE Federation is committed to ensuring all line managers are aware of domestic abuse and its implications in the workplace. Information, briefings or awareness raising sessions will ensure that all managers are able to:

- Identify if an employee is experiencing difficulties because of domestic abuse.
- Respond to disclosure in a sensitive and non-judgemental manner.
- Provide initial support be clear about available workplace support.
- Discuss how the organisation can contribute to safety planning.
- Signpost to other organisations and sources of support.

Understand that they are not counsellors.

10. Professional role and risk management

All organisations should have clear policies in line with those from the LSCB for dealing with allegations against people who work with children.

An allegation may relate to a person who works with children who has; Behaved in a way

that has harmed a child, or may have harmed a child:

Possibly committed a criminal offence against or related to a child:

Behaved towards a child or children in a way that indicates they may pose a risk of harm to children.

Each Local Authority should have a Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) to be involved in the management and oversight of individual cases. The LADO should provide advice and guidance to employers and voluntary organisations, liaising with the police and other agencies and monitoring the progress of cases to ensure that they are dealt with as quickly as possible, consistent with a thorough and fair process.

The LADO should also be informed within one working day of all allegations that come to an employer's attention or that are made directly to the police.

The Norfolk LADO team can be contacted on 01603 223473.

In relation to Vulnerable Adults all referrals must be directed to the Safeguarding Coordinator.

Further information, advice and guidance can be found on the Norfolk Safeguarding Children Partnership site <u>Domestic Violence and Abuse Policy | NSCP</u> This site contains information about 'Clare's Law' – The Domestic Violence Disclosure Scheme (DVDS). 'The DVDS gives members of the public a formal mechanism to make enquires about an individual who they are in a relationship with, or who is in a relationship with someone they know, where there is a concern that the individual may be violent towards their partner. This scheme adds a further dimension to the information sharing about children where there are concerns that domestic violence and abuse is impacting on the care and welfare of the children in the family.'

11. Monitoring and review

This policy will be reviewed as part of our policy review cycle by the governing board and the headteacher.

Any changes made to this policy will be communicated to all members of staff.

All members of staff are required to familiarise themselves with all processes and procedures outlined in this policy as part of their induction programme.

The next scheduled review date for this policy is Spring 2028.

12. Further guidance

Anyone using this policy to respond to a victim or perpetrator of domestic abuse should refer to further current information provided by: http://www.leewaysupport.org http://www.nscb.norfolk.gov.uk www.refuge.org.uk www.respect.uk.net www.womensaid.org.uk http://www.nationaldomesticviolencehelpline.org.uk

Appendix 1

Police Emergency Contact Number:

999 Police Non-Emergency Contact Number: 101

Website: www.norfolk.police.uk

nestic Abuse Helplines		
Leeway Domestic Violence Helpline (local) http://www.leewaysupport.org		0300 5610077
National 24-hour Domestic Violence Helpline http://www.nationaldomesticviolencehelpline.org.uk		0808 2000247
Childline		0800 1111
http://www.childline.org.uk		
Mens Advice Line (for male victims) www.mensadviceline.org.uk		0808 8010327
National Domestic Violence Helpline <a href="http://www.nationaldomesticviolencehelplichtp://www.nationaldomesticviolen</td><td>•</td><td>Aid)0808 2000247</td></tr><tr><td>National Victim
http://www.victimsupport.org.uk</td><td>Support</td><td>0808 1689111</td></tr><tr><td>National Centre for Domestic http://www.ncdv.org.uk	Violence	08009702070
For Help TEXT "NCDV"		60777
Samaritans		116 123
Shelterline		0344 515 1860
Crime Stoppers		0800 555111
National Drugs Helpline		0800 5404120
National Help Line for LGBT		0800 9995428
Debtline		0808 8084000
NHS Direct		111
Paladin National Stalking Helpline		020 38664107

Honour Abuse Help lines

Karma Nirvana	0800 5999247
Aanchal (Asian Languages spoken)	08454 512 547
Southall Black Sister	0208 5710800
Ashiana Network (Turkish and South Asian)	0208 5390427
Ikrow (Iranian, Kurdish women's rights organisation)	0207 9206460

Children's Services

Norfolk County Council (Main Switch Board For any Safeguarding concerns)

0344 8008020

Page

Hospitals	
Queen Elizabeth Kings Lynn	01553 613613
Norfolk and Norwich	01603 286286
James Paget, Gorleston	01493 452452
Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk	01284 713000